
HS & HS/Minutes 11 February 08) - 1 - 

 
 
 

 

S O U T H  O F  M A R K E T  P R O J E C T  A R E A  C O M M I T T E E  

 1035 FOLSOM STREET •  SAN FRANCISCO, CA  •  94103 
415.487.2166 Fax 415. 487.2169 • website: http://www.sompac.com 

Advisory body to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency 
 

 
HEALTH, SAFETY & HUMAN SERVICES SUBCOMMITTEE 

Tuesday March 4, 2008 
12:00 Noon 

 
Presiding Chair (12:05 PM) 
Ingrid Aquino 
 
Chair’s Report (12:05 PM) 
 
Determination of Quorum (12:08 PM) 
Present: Ingrid Aquino, John Melone/SAN, Raymon Smith (\12:38 PM) and Antoinetta 
Stadlman  
 
Absent: John Markham, and Dipak Patel  
Staff: Marcia Ban and Karen Nolan 
 
Agency: Cathy Pickering and Mike Grisso 
 
Guests: Jackie Jenks and Jenny Wiley/Hospitality House Charles Range/SOM Health 
Center and Andrew Harris/Rancho Parnassus  
 
Approval of minutes (12:06 PM) 
Motion: “To approve the minutes of the February 2008 Health, Safety & Human 
Services Subcommittee.” 
 
Vote: Yes: 4 No: 0 Abstain: 0 Motion Passes  
  
Agenda Order (12:107 PM) 
1,2,3,4,5,7,8,9,6,10,11 
Motion: “To approve the agenda order hearing item 6 after item 9.” 
 
Vote: Yes: 4 No: 0 Abstain: 0 Motion Passes 
  
Announcement of next Human Services Committee meeting 
The next Health, Safety & Human Services Subcommittee will meet on Tuesday April 8th, 
2008 at 12:00 noon. 
 
 
 
 



HS & HS/Minutes 11 February 08) - 2 - 

Agenda Item 7. Alleyway Improvements Project Update by Cathy Pickering  
(12:08 PM) 
Ms. Pickering announced that the Agency should have a draft scope and budget for the 
alleyway improvements soon. The Agency will review this internally and bring it to the 
PAC for approval in April. The project will then go to the Redevelopment Commission in 
May. Ms. Pickering stated that the RFP would go out in August and construction should 
begin in 2009. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that he appreciates the information provided by the Agency, but he 
would like to know what the HS & HS Subcommittee has done as far as fact finding, 
contact with the community during the decision making process and how it was 
determined which alleyways were chosen. 
 
Ms. Aquino stated that she has talked to people in her apartment building and they 
attended the meetings and like the design. Mr. Smith stated that the question is whether 
or not we have heard from the community in the Project Area that we serve. Mr. Melone 
stated that the question is what this subcommittee has done as far as holding any 
meetings or inviting anyone in the community to discuss this project. He stated that we 
need to make contact with the community to attend meetings. Mr. Melone stated that we 
have three or four people at our meetings making decisions that affect the entire 
community. 
 
Ms. Aquino stated that she invites people to attend, but most people work and cannot 
attend a noon meeting. She stated that she speaks to people at community meetings 
and most have told her that the streets will be safer with more lighting. 
 
Ms. Stadlman stated that this subject has been discussed at several meetings and the 
problem is people just don’t show up. Mr. Smith stated that he would like to hear from 
our director regarding our role in fact finding. He stated that we have many community 
groups in the area and we have a responsibility to get these groups to the table for 
discussions. We do not know what future budgets will be and we have a responsibility to 
determine what best serves the community. Ms. Stadlman stated that these community 
groups all know that we have meetings. Mr. Smith stated that we need to look at how 
we do things. Ms. Stadlman disagreed and stated that at the end of the day it is what 
we do, not how we do it. There was a discussion regarding the process of meetings. 
 
Mr. Smith referred to the process for the alleyway improvement community meetings 
and stated that the Agency sends notices to the community addressed to occupant and 
they are thrown in the trash. The people that were invited to attend are from a small 
geographic area and Mr. Smith would question the due process. Ms. Pickering stated 
that thousands of notices were sent out for the alley improvement project and there was 
a good turn out at the meetings by the community. 
 
Mr. Grisso stated that all the alleys in the Project Area will be done, but we cannot do 
them all at once. He stated that the Agency proposed what alleys to do first and all of the 
PAC voted on this. The selected alleys were approved by the PAC in April 2007. Mr. 
Smith stated that the PAC never had input into the alleys that would be done, we only 
voted on the project. He stated that he understands the PAC advises the Agency on 
projects in the area, but this was brought to us for a vote as a done deal. Mr. Grisso 
suggested that if Mr. Smith does not like the vote he should see if he couldn’t rescind it 
and get another vote. 



HS & HS/Minutes 11 February 08) - 3 - 

 
Mr. Range stated that it is impossible to get the entire community to attend a meeting. 
He stated that this project was brought to the PAC by the Agency. That is their job and if 
we do not like the project then we should vote against it. Mr. Range stated that we want 
what is best for this community. Which alleyways are done first does not matter. They 
will all be done and we must keep our egos out of the decision making process. We 
cannot rescind a vote once we have approved a project because the funds are already 
expended. Mr. Range stated that if someone has a problem with the Agency then they 
should deal with the Agency and not hang up the process for the community. He pointed 
out that we have a newsletter that goes out to over 4,000 people and this newsletter lists 
all of our meetings, but most people only attend when something excites them. 
 
Mr. Smith thanked Mr. Range for the historical statement and asked Mr. Grisso if we 
are to understand from what he stated that all of the alleys in the Project Area would be 
done. Mr. Grisso stated that he cannot guarantee that because he does not know what 
the funding will be in three years time. 
 
Mr. Range referred to Ms. Aquino as chair of the HS &HS Subcommittee and stated 
that it is amazing what Ms. Aquino allows to occur in this meeting. He stated that this 
has already been voted on and approved. We should not be having this discussion and if 
we have rational, sane people on this PAC then you must wonder what is going on. Ms. 
Stadlman stated that we should have started on the alleyways a long time ago. 
 
Agenda Item 8. Victoria Manalo Draves Park Update by Ingrid Aquino (12:38 PM) 
Ms. Aquino announced that the bulletin board at VMD Park would go up in April. A 
health fair will be held at the park in May where they will unveil the bulletin board. The 
park group continues to do monthly clean-ups and the park looks very nice. 
 
Agenda Item 9. SOMA Youth Center Presentation by Misha Olivas (12:39 PM) 
This item was skipped due to Ms. Olivas absence. 
 
Agenda Item 6. PACland Crime Matters by SFPD (12:40 PM) 
This item was skipped due to a lack of police representation. 
 
Agenda Item 10. Hospitality House 6th Street Drop-In Center by Jackie Jenks 
(12:41 PM) 
Ms. Jenks introduced herself as Executive Director for Hospitality House and Ms. Wiley 
as Program Director for the Hospitality House 6th Street Drop-in Center and announced 
that Hospitality House was founded in 1967 during the Summer of Love. They have the 
Tenderloin Self-Help Center that provides services to the homeless and the housed. 
They have the smallest shelter program serving 30 men that was also the first shelter in 
San Francisco. Men are provided with a 90-day bed as well as case management and 
supportive services for housing. Hospitality House has a community arts program with a 
free fine arts studio offering painting, drawing, ceramics, creative writing, etc. They have 
been in the Tenderloin for 41 years. 
 
Hospitality House was asked by the Public Health Department to open the drop-in center 
on 6th Street and funding was authorized by Supervisor Daly through the Board of 
Supervisors. The center, located at 169-181 6th Street on the ground floor of the Alder 
Hotel is currently under construction. They hope to complete construction and open in 
the summer. 



HS & HS/Minutes 11 February 08) - 4 - 

 
Ms. Wiley announced that the drop-in center is there for people to have a place to go 
and be off the street. Anyone is welcome and they have no set criteria for anyone 
wanting to come inside. Some people just need a place to sit and others come for 
services. They provide a medical clinic, behavioral health, employment resources, 
computer lab, resume assistance, telephones and housing services. 
 
Ms. Wiley stated that they have met with many groups and members of the community 
and the feedback they received was that there should be a separate drop-in space for 
seniors. 
 
Mr. Range stated that Hospitality House provides a good, needed service for people, but 
there has been a tremendous effort and a large amount of money expended to improve 
6th Street into a commercial corridor. He stated that these are needed services, but they 
should not be on the main street. Mr. Grisso stated that this was a private lease. Ms. 
Stadlman commented that Supervisor Daly crammed this down our throats. Ms Wiley 
stated that it is important to give feedback and these points did come up. Another aspect 
was for people to be physically off the street with a place to go. Hospitality House will do 
everything to ensure that people do not loiter in front of the premises. She stated that a 
lot of people in the SRO Hotels want employment services. 
 
Ms. Wiley stated that Hospitality House is currently looking for feedback on the hours of 
operation and she would appreciate members completing a survey with regard to the 
hours of operation. Ms. Stadlman referred to the employment services and suggested 
that Ms. Wiley speak to Mr. Marcos at the South of Market Employment Center. Ms. 
Wiley stated that Hospitality House partners with the Mission Hiring Hall in a 
collaborative with 12 other groups. Ms. Stadlman referred to comments made about 
getting people off the streets and she wondered, with the small space, how many people 
they would be able to serve. Ms. Jenks stated that they could serve approximately 10-
15 seniors and 15-25 other adults. They will also have a group room and a holistic health 
room where acupuncture will be provided. 
 
Ms. Stadlman stated that she always sees crowds of people in front of social service 
agencies. These agencies have no loitering policies, but they are never enforced. Ms. 
Jenks stated that Hospitality House made a commitment to enforce a no loitering policy 
and they have hired a manager that will enforce this policy. She pointed out that the 
advantage of a new space is that you can enforce the policy from the beginning. Mr. 
Grisso referred to the no loitering policy and wanted to know if Hospitality House might 
build on this by doing outreach to people loitering on 6th Street offering them a place to 
go. Ms. Jenks stated that this is a part of what they do already. She pointed out that the 
Public Health Department is cutting all budgets by 15%, including the self-help centers. 
 
Mr. Melone wondered if we couldn’t organize a committee of clientele to do outreach to 
get others to come inside. Ms. Jenks stated that they have a volunteer program that is a 
peer based model. This works to create leaders in the community. 
 
Ms. Aquino stated that she was upset when she first heard of this program coming to 6th 
Street because we are trying to clean up the area. She stated that 6th Street has been a 
skid row for a very long time and there are groups of men that sit on chairs on the 
sidewalk drinking. There are also a large number of youth that hang out on the street. 
Ms. Aquino stated that she doubts any of these people will utilize the services and she 



HS & HS/Minutes 11 February 08) - 5 - 

is concerned that it will attract others from outside of this area, which will prevent 
businesses from wanting to come here. Ms. Jenks stated that it was a policy decision by 
the Board of Supervisors to have a drop-in center on 6th Street. People will find the 
space and become comfortable and Hospitality House wants to provide neighborhood 
services for the community. They have stayed away from services that create lines out 
front such as food programs, shelter and give-away programs of free items. 
 
Mr. Range stated that whether it is a policy decision by the Board of Supervisors or not, 
Hospitality House had input in the decision making process. The PAC has a policy for 
the South of Market to make 6th Street a business district and social services should not 
locate to 6th Street. When you bring in homeless services, you drive away business. 
They should be located on the side streets. 
 
Agenda Item 11. Committee Member Announcements (1:17 PM) 
Nothing to announce at this time. 
 
Public Comment (1:18 PM) 
 
 
Meeting Ended (1:19 PM) 

 
Ingrid Aquino 

Chair 


